
HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT TASK FORCE 

Appointed by the City & Borough of Juneau’s Mayor 

Meeting Agenda  

Friday, January 21, 2022 

12:00 P.M. – 1:30 P.M. 

Marine View Building, 4th Floor Conference Room & Zoom Webinar 

Members of the public may listen in or watch by following one of these options. 

Please click the link to join the meeting: 

https://juneau.zoom.us/j/84155739685, or call 1-669-900-6833 or 1-253-215-

8782 or 1-346-248-7799 or 1-929-436-2866 or 1-301-715-8592 or 1-312-626-

6799, and enter Webinar ID: 841 5573 9685 

A. Call to Order

B. Approval of Agenda

C. Minutes

a. December 10, 2021 Draft Minutes

D. Comments About Last Meeting

E. Title 49 Update – Specific Revisions to Title 49 by Developers

a. Discussion of the Items Contained in Mr. Heumann’s Two Emails

with Concerns

F. Discussion of Table of Dimensional Standards and Related Code Sections

a. Discussion of the Motion by Ms. Gladziszewski and What to

Forward to Assembly with That Motion: i.e. Written Comments

by Mr. Voelckers – “The Housing and Development Task Force

committee recommends that the Planning Commission review

the Table of Dimensional Standards for the amendments that are

needed to facilitate housing development.”

G. Public Comment (10 Minutes)

H. Suggestions for Next Agenda

I. Next Meeting Date is February 11, 2022

Assembly Charge 

The purpose of this task force 

shall be to provide helpful 

advice to the Assembly 

regarding housing and 

development issues. 

Specifically, the task force is 

asked to: 

1. Review the path that a

project must take to gain

approval. Identify areas

where pathways may be

improved, keeping in mind

staff constraints. Evaluate

the current pre-application

process and make

recommendations.

2. Discuss possible

structures to engage a

working group that

interfaces with land and

facility developers in the

industry.

3. Consistent with Assembly

goals, identify general

processes and areas in

existing Title 49 code that

inhibit growth and

development. The goal is to

identify and prioritize tasks

or projects that could be

worked on by this task force

or other groups.

https://juneau.zoom.us/j/84155739685


Housing Development Task Force – DRAFT November 12, 2021 Minutes   Page 1 of 4 
 

THE CITY AND BOROUGH OF JUNEAU, ALASKA 

HOUSING & DEVELOPMENT TASK FORCE 

December 10, 2021 – DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting of the Housing and Development Task Force was held in the 4th Floor Conference 

Room of the Marine View Building, and was called to order by Chair Loren Jones at 11:03a.m. 

 

 Roll Call 

Members Present: Ex-Officio Chair Loren Jones, Dave Hanna, Wayne Jensen, Bill Heumann, 

Paul Voelckers, Nathaniel Dye (via Zoom) 

 

Members Absent: Vice Chair Maria Gladziszewski and Michelle Hale. 

 

Staff Present: City Manager Rorie Watt, Mayor Beth Weldon, City Attorney Robert Palmer, 

Community Development Department Director Jill Maclean, CDD Administrative Assistant 

Chelsea Wallace, Assistant City Attorney Sherri Layne, Municipal Clerk Beth McEwen 

 

B. Approval of Agenda 

Hearing no changes, the agenda was approved as presented. 

 

C. Approval of Minutes 

 a. September 30, 2021 Draft Minutes 

 b. October 15, 2021 Draft Minutes 

 c. October 29, 2021 Draft Minutes 

Mr. Voelkers noted that the October 29 Meeting Minutes listed him as being present at the 

meeting, when he was actually absent and traveling during that time. 

 

Hearing no further comments, the September 30 and October 15 Minutes were approved as 

presented. 

 

D. Comments About Last Meeting 

There were no comments about the November 12, 2021 meeting. 

 

E. Review of Variance Ordinance 

Mr. Jones referenced the discussion surrounding variances at the November 12 meeting, which 

prompted him to invite City Attorney Robert Palmer to today's meeting to provide additional 

insight to variance-related ordinances. 

 

Mr. Palmer thanked Mr. Jones for the introduction, and identified two key concepts essential to 

this discussion: the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and the concept of variances. He described 

the Conditional Use Permit as a permit approval process designed to provide flexibility to 



Housing Development Task Force – DRAFT November 12, 2021 Minutes   Page 2 of 4 
 

developers, whereas a variance is a request that violates the law as it is written. He further 

explained that variances are not meant to be used for flexibility purposes. 

 

Mr. Palmer gave a general overview describing the legal processes, comparing State law practice 

to local Assembly rulings in relation to variances. 

 

Mr. Voelkers added that variances are often rather difficult to obtain, and heavily rely on 

geographical and physical limitations.  

 

Mr. Hanna mentioned that 30% of Juneau's ordinances are in some way related to Title 49. He 

said that this number of ordinances is a testament to an underlying problem that is in need of 

being addressed, adding that a functional Title 49 would not necessitate such a high amount of 

ordinances. 

 

Mr. Voelkers asked CDD Director Maclean to define the criteria in which a Conditional Use 

Permit is necessary. Ms. Maclean explained that the CUP process is often determined on the 

number of dwelling units, bedrooms, and acreage. She suggested that the committee keep 

neighborhoods in mind when considering the CUP process, and to recognize the impact that 

rezoning may have on neighboring properties.  

 

Mr. Jones shared his experience from attending a significant amount of Planning Commission 

meetings over the past nine years, saying that the public process is often the most contentious 

part of the CUP process. He spoke to the importance of allowing the public the ability to weigh 

in by opting for a thorough public comment period. 

 

Mr. Jones asked Ms. Maclean to clarify where in the process the public comment period begins 

prior to a Planning Commission decision, such as a neighborhood meeting hosted by CDD. 

Ms. Maclean shared that the initiation of the public comment period is at her discretion as CDD 

Director, and typically depends on the type of permit being issued. She added that she takes this 

aspect of her role very seriously, and has adopted the Systemic Racism Review Committee 

criteria into her decision-making. Ms. Maclean also added that CDD strives to issue notice to the 

public at least six weeks in advance, beyond the standard two week public notice requirement. 

 

There was further discussion and clarification related to the Conditional Use Permit process. 

 

F. Assembly Retreat Update 

Mayor Weldon provided an update on the Assembly Retreat that was held on December 4, where 

the Assembly met to decide upon the Assembly Goals for 2022. Mayor Weldon reported that the 

Assembly considered the revision of Title 49 and updating the Comprehensive Plan as Assembly 

Goals related to the Housing and Development Task Force. 

 

Mayor Weldon added that one of the Assembly Goals involved allocating funds for the purpose 

of accomplishing the goals they established. 



Housing Development Task Force – DRAFT November 12, 2021 Minutes   Page 3 of 4 
 

 

Mr. Watt reported that the Assembly discussed revising and improving Title 49, facilitating 

housing, the implementation of projects and strategies that further develops the Affordable 

Housing Action Plan, and continue utilizing the Affordable Housing Fund. 

 

Mr. Voelkers asked if the Assembly had considered an entire rewrite of Title 49 or selective 

upgrades to Title 49 as needed. Mayor Weldon said that the sentiment of the Assembly seemed 

to be to revise Title 49 as needed. 

 

G. Examples of Permitting Delays 

Mr. Jones recommended this topic be included in the agenda for a future meeting. 

 

H. Recommendations for Changes to Title 49 

Mr. Heumann shared that the developers held a meeting on December 7, the general consensus 

from this meeting expressed that a revised Title 49 should include specific requirements for the 

timing of the permitting process. He added that one of the biggest problems shared amongst local 

developers was identified as a lack of communication between developers and the City. Mr. 

Heumann provided examples of this through his experiences with the City from past developer 

projects. 

 

Mr. Hanna agreed with Mr. Heumann's report, and said that communication issues was one of 

the biggest concerns discussed at the developer meeting. He acknowledged the staffing issues at 

CDD, and suggested the City address the empty positions through contracting outside help. 

 

Mr. Voelkers noted that one of the first actions taken by this committee was to modify the pre-

application process. He asked if a streamlined pre-application process would help address 

concerns regarding timing. Mr. Jensen explained that the pre-application process typically takes 

up to a year, during which the project often morphs and changes, which in turn results in further 

delays in the pre-application process. 

 

There was further discussion regarding the details and the timing of the pre-application process. 

 

Ms. Maclean explained that the issue regarding the pre-application schedule was recently 

brought to her attention, and she was able to fix that problem the following day. She encouraged 

the development sector to plan further out with their scheduling, noting that the winter months 

are often a slower time for CDD. Ms. Maclean also said that putting hard deadlines into Code 

would be difficult; if the developers were asking CDD to consider adopting hard deadlines into 

Code, she noted that in order to do so, pre-applications would need to be detailed, specific, and 

meeting the requirements set by the state.  

 

Ms. Maclean provided an update on recently filled CDD staff positions.  

 

I. Public Comment (10 Minutes) 



Housing Development Task Force – DRAFT November 12, 2021 Minutes   Page 4 of 4 
 

Municipal Clerk Beth McEwen mentioned that the draft Assembly Retreat Meeting Minutes 

would be posted later that day, prior to the Regular Assembly Meeting on December 13. 

 

J. Suggestions for Next Agenda 

Mr. Jones set the agenda for the next meeting to include a discussion related to the Table of 

Dimensional Standards, Permitting, and Title 49. 

 

There was a discussion about Title 49 in relation to the local housing shortage.  

 

K. Next Meeting Date 

Mr. Jones recommended the committee set the next HDTF meetings to be held on January 14 

and January 28. Ms. Maclean shared that she would be travelling during January 28. 

 

Mr. Jones then discussed possible dates with the task force and a consensus was reached to hold 

the next meeting dates on January 7 and January 21. 

 

L. ADJOURNMENT 

There being nothing else to come before the Housing & Development Task Force, the meeting 

was adjourned by Chair Loren Jones at 1:30p.m. 

 

 



1

From: "Loren Jones" <Loren.Jones@juneau.org> 
Subject: Fwd: Document11 
Date: 07 January 2022 11:52 
To: "Jill Maclean" <Jill.Maclean@juneau.org> 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: William Heumann <WHeumann@msn.com> 
Date: January 7, 2022 at 10:20:04 AM AKST 
To: Loren Jones <Loren.Jones@juneau.org> 
Cc: Dave Hanna <thedavehanna@gmail.com>, Craig Dahl <cdahl@juneauchamber.com> 
Subject: FW: Document11 

EXTERNAL E-MAIL: BE CAUTIOUS WHEN OPENING FILES OR FOLLOWING LINKS 

Loren, 

These are bullet points that were compiled by the JCC Builder/Developer/Construction Sub‐
Committee.  I was asked to forward them to the Task Force. 

Thank you, 

Bill 



 

 Overriding issue (many different examples) is timely communication  

o Questions asked and then answered then experience lengthy delays before next step without 
acknowledgement  

 Absence of any kind of tracking system that allows both builders and staff to know where a 
permit is in the process (apparently the system exists but has not been used for quite some time) 

o No standards are set for timely response 

 Permit reviews are scheduled on a limited basis causing unnecessary delays in moving projects 
forward 

o The permitting is not viewed as a top priority for promoting development.  Staffing or other 
priorities result in limited capacity to review permits each week, with no “standard” for a timely 
review/response 

o Residential and Commercial construction is the actual conversion of an idea/plan into 
employment and payrolls – so processing development permits should be the top priority to 
serve the goals of affordable housing and community development. 

 Simple projects need the same number of approval points as complex projects – no time standard 
for review/approval 

o Needs to be more attention given to ways to speed up different types of permit applications 

 Interpretation of either Title 49 or Building Code can vary from person to person – need more 
consistency  

 
 
 



1

From: "Loren Jones" <Loren.Jones@juneau.org> 
Subject: Fwd: Agenda Items 
Date: 07 January 2022 11:52 
To: "Jill Maclean" <Jill.Maclean@juneau.org> 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: William Heumann <WHeumann@msn.com> 
Date: January 7, 2022 at 10:03:19 AM AKST 
To: Loren Jones <Loren.Jones@juneau.org> 
Cc: Dave Hanna <thedavehanna@gmail.com> 
Subject: Agenda Items 

EXTERNAL E-MAIL: BE CAUTIOUS WHEN OPENING FILES OR FOLLOWING LINKS 

Loren, 

Below are topics which have been discussed at Chamber/Developer meetings and amongst 
ourselves.  We would like to place them on the Agenda for the next meeting after today’s:  

 O‐lot lines – Why must they be connected?  It is common in other communities to allow the
development of detached O‐lot lines.

 Temporary  Cul‐de‐sacs ‐  In general temporary cul‐de‐sacs are problematic. Where should they
be required?  What should be their physical characteristics.  To what level should they be
constructed in what time frame?

 Bonds ‐  What is their purpose?  What relief do they provide to developers?
 Major Subdivision improvements necessary for granting of Occupancy Permits –  A Final Plat can

be approved if a bond is placed in the hands of the CBJ.  Building Permits can be
issued.  However, Occupancy Permits can be denied due to improvements not in
place.  Additional cash bonds can be required in addition to the original bonds to obtain an
Occupancy Permit.

 Engineering Standards – Title 49 requires maintenance of a file containing the Engineering
Standards and a Public Hearing to modify the standards;

o Where is this file maintained?



2

o It there a history of the Public Hearings?
o Is there a history of the changes?
o Are they interpreted consistently?

 Some state and federal agencies would prefer less pavement (fewer sidewalks) than CBJ to keep
drainage out of culverts to protect the environment.  They wish to reduce impermeable
surfaces.

 We are unclear about the relationship between CDD and Engineering.  Who has the say over
permits issued by the Engineering Department?  Must applications for these permits pass
through the Planning Department?

 Street Acceptance‐  The conditions for the acceptance of improvements in the CBJ ROW should
be reviewed.

 Stub Streets – Discussion warranted as several issues have arisen regarding development of lots
on stub streets, the requirement for temporary cul‐de‐sacs for lots accessed by stub streets, the
belief that it is unfair to take land from one property owner to provide access to another.

 Conditional Use Permits – When are Conditional Use Permits required?  Why is a CU required to
build an apartment development?  Can not an apartment development be proscriptive:  meet
setbacks, parking requirements, height restrictions, building code requirements, etc.  Any
residential development in a residential district, a commercial development in a commercial
district, a mixed use development in a mixed use district, etc. should be proscriptive.

 Permitting Process ‐What discretion does CDD have to decide what parts of the code to
enforce?

 Subdivision Review Committee – Title 49 provides for Subdivision Review Committee meetings
where developers can discuss concepts with members of the Planning Commission.  These
meetings have been discouraged by CDD.  Why is this?

Thank you, 

Bill Heumann 



Below are topics, which have been discussed at Chamber/Developer meetings and amongst 
ourselves.  We would like to place them on the Agenda for the next meeting after the January 21 meeting:  
 

 O-lot lines – Why must they be connected?  It is common in other communities to allow the 
development of detached O-lot lines. 

o Need clarification; structures are allowed to be detached (not called zero lot lines); is there 
an example of code to look at? Which communities use this? 
 

 Temporary Cul-de-sacs – In general, temporary cul-de-sacs are problematic. Where should they 
be required?  What should be their physical characteristics?  To what level should they be 
constructed in what time frame?   

o Code specifies that temporary cul-de-sacs are required for phased subdivisions; this 
ensures that there is adequate turnaround for property owners, emergency access, and if 
the CBJ needs to take over the subdivision to complete buildout, the temporary cul-de-sac 
has been installed and doesn’t fall to taxpayers to complete the street. 

 

 Bonds – What is their purpose?  What relief do they provide to developers? 
o Bonds protect the CBJ from paying for private sector work that is left incomplete – bonds 

protect the CBJ and taxpayers. 
 

 Major Subdivision improvements necessary for granting of Occupancy Permits – A Final Plat can 
be approved if a bond is placed in the hands of the CBJ.  Building Permits can be issued.  However, 
Occupancy Permits can be denied due to improvements not in place.  Additional cash bonds can 
be required in addition to the original bonds to obtain an Occupancy Permit.   

o Need a specific situation to identify what happened; COs are not issued until the work is 
complete or the street is accepted by CBJ or if CBJ has a bond. 

o Additional bonds have been provided to developers when they choose not to follow the 
schedule they set, and time runs out and paving companies close; it allows developers 
flexibility when they don’t meet their construction schedule. 
 

 Engineering Standards – Title 49 requires maintenance of a file containing the Engineering 
Standards and a Public Hearing to modify the standards. 

o Where is this file maintained?   
 Per CBJ records, Engineering and Public Works website (see links below). 

 
o It there a history of the Public Hearings?  

 Per the CBJ records retention, files are kept for 7 years. 
 

o Is there a history of the changes?  
 49.35.130 (c) outlines the process for “a substantial change in the standards 

applicable to required subdivision improvements” (emphasis added). 
 Engineering Standard Specifications were last issued in 2003 under Rosemary 

Matt, PE, who was Chief Contracts Engineer. A far as I am aware, a robust public 
process was followed, per the code requirements. Prior to that, the last issuance 
was in 1988. https://juneau.org/engineering-public-works/standard-
specifications 

 There have been 16 erratum issued since to address errors, contradictions, and 
conflicts with the new standards and new product materials not in use in 2003. 

https://juneau.org/engineering-public-works/standard-specifications
https://juneau.org/engineering-public-works/standard-specifications


Those can be found at the same link labeled “Errata.” Erratum do not occur over 
night.   Typically, the changes that would be made by an Erratum are included into 
CBJ CIP Bid contract’s Special Provisions as an improvement coming from 
repetitive past problems, conflict and/or quality issue that needs to be addressed.  

 Standard Details were issued last in 2011 under Engineering Public Works Director 
Rorie Watt. Those can be found here: https://juneau.org/engineering-public-
works/cbj-engineering-standards with the errata listed at the top of the page. 
 

o Are they interpreted consistently?  
 The Department strives to treat all development equally; adherence to CBJ 

standards and specifications is critical in providing borough residents with quality 
services and infrastructure. However, in acknowledgment that no project is the 
same and unforeseen circumstances come up, Title 49 allows “the director of 
engineering and public works to prescribe different or additional standards if 
unusual or unforeseen conditions exist in a particular development, and the 
alternative meets or exceeds the intent of the original standard” (emphasis 
added). 

 

 Some state and federal agencies would prefer less pavement (fewer sidewalks) than CBJ to keep 
drainage out of culverts to protect the environment.  They wish to reduce impermeable surfaces. 

o Comp Plan and non-motorized transportation plans calls for sidewalks and safe streets for 
schoolchildren, people with physical impairments, and generally pedestrians. 

o Which state and federal agencies and under what circumstances? 
 

 We are unclear about the relationship between CDD and Engineering. Who has the say over 
permits issued by the Engineering Department?  Must applications for these permits pass through 
the Planning Department? 

o Director of CDD oversees CDD (Building / Code Compliance, Admin / Permit Tech, Planning 
/ Zoning) and the Permit Center. 

o Director of Engineering & Public Works oversees Engineering, General Engineering (GE), 
Streets, Waste Water, Water, and Transit. 

o The departments work closely together and partner to staff pre-application conferences 
as a team. 

o Permits are issued through the Permit Center, which is managed by CDD and staffed by 
both CDD and GE. 

 Permit Center is a “one stop shop” – many communities strive to provide such a 
facility. 

 

 Street Acceptance – The conditions for the acceptance of improvements in the CBJ ROW should 
be reviewed. 

o Okay.  
 

 Stub Streets – Discussion warranted as several issues have arisen regarding development of lots 
on stub streets, the requirement for temporary cul-de-sacs for lots accessed by stub streets, the 
belief that it is unfair to take land from one property owner to provide access to another. 

o Stub street ordinance was updated in April 2019. 
 
 

https://juneau.org/engineering-public-works/cbj-engineering-standards
https://juneau.org/engineering-public-works/cbj-engineering-standards


 Conditional Use Permits –  
o When are Conditional Use Permits required?   

 Review TPU 49.25.300. 
o Why is a CU required to build an apartment development? 

 Review 49.25.300(c). 
o Cannot an apartment development be proscriptive:  meet setbacks, parking 

requirements, height restrictions, building code requirements, etc.  Any residential 
development in a residential district, a commercial development in a commercial district, 
a mixed-use development in a mixed use district, etc. should be proscriptive.  

 Review 49.25.300(c). 
 Recommend reviewing thresholds for triggering the requirement of a CUP. 

 

 Permitting Process – What discretion does CDD have to decide what parts of the code to enforce?   
o Land Use Code is law—it must be applied; the Land Use Code is not a guide or best 

management practice, it is regulation. 
 

 Subdivision Review Committee – Title 49 provides for Subdivision Review Committee meetings 
where developers can discuss concepts with members of the Planning Commission.  These 
meetings have been discouraged by CDD.  Why is this?   

o Subdivision Review Committee was repealed in March 2020 and therefore meetings can’t 
be scheduled, because the committee doesn’t exist. 

 




























	Agenda
	December 10, 2021 Draft Minutes
	First Email from Mr. Heumann, followed by Attachment
	Second Email from Mr. Heumann
	Response from Ms. Maclean & Ms. Koester to Mr. Heumann
	Mr. Voelcker's Proposed Edits to the Table of Dimensional Standards
	Mr. Heumann's Table of Dimensional Standards Revisions

